
MEETING NOTICE: There will be a Regular Meeting of the  
Blanchard /Santa Paula Library District Board of Trustees 

Tuesday, January 24, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Blanchard Community Library 

119 N. 8th St., Santa Paula, CA 93060. 
 

AGENDA 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AT THE LIBRARY 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Public comments are welcomed and encouraged.  The President of the Board will 
acknowledge visitors wishing to speak on a topic not on the regular Board agenda.  
The Board is prohibited from taking action on any item not part of the printed 
agenda.  When addressing the Library Board, please stand to be recognized by the 
Board President, state your full name and address, and direct your comments to the 
entire Library Board.  

 
For members in the audience wishing to speak on an Agenda item, the President 
will announce the item and request the staff or a Board member to give a brief 
summary. The Board will have an opportunity to ask questions, following which the 
President will ask whether anyone else wishes to comment.  Then the Board will 
discuss the item and take the appropriate action.  

 
The Library Board of Trustees requests that speakers conduct themselves with 
civility and keep in mind the rights and well-being of all members of the Santa 
Paula community. 

 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. Approval of Minutes: Meeting of December 27, 2022 
 

E. REPORTS 
a. Financial Reports—December 2022 
b. Friends of the Library 

                                              
F. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUT 

 
G. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Approval of Remodel Flooring Bid (information, discussion, possible action) 
b. Library Furniture Proposal from Tri County Office Furniture (information, 

discussion, possible action) 



 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Approval of Draft of 2021-22 Audit (information, discussion, possible action) 
b. Approval of Authorized Bank Account Signatories (information, discussion, 

possible action) 
c. Approval of Cost Estimate for Working Drawings for New Building (information, 

discussion, possible action) 
 

I. REPORTS (CONTINUED) 
a. Staff Reports 

i. Public Services Reports 
ii. Facilities Report 

iii. District Director’s Report 
b. Board Committees 

i. Finance 
ii. Human Resources 

iii. Strategic Plan Teams 
1. Visioning/Strategic Plan  
2. Fundraising/Grants 

                   
J. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

 
K. UPCOMING MEETING DATES  

Regular Meeting February 28, 2023 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability-related 
modification, accommodation, or other special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Ned Branch, 
District Director of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Community Library, at 805-525-3615 x301.  Notification 48 hours 
before the meeting will enable reasonable arrangements to be made.  
  



 
REGULAR MEETING OF January 24, 2023 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting of December 27, 2022 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

REVISED MINUTES SEPTEMBER 27, 2022 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, December 27, 2022 

Draft 1/4/2023    1 

A. CALL TO ORDER--- The Meeting was called to order at 6:06 PM by Board President Ron 
Merson. Trustees Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, and Miriam Zamora were in attendance, a 
quorum established.  Trustee Ricardo Reyes was absent.  District Director Ned Branch was 
present.  
B. APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF AGENDA-  
Motion: Approve order of the agenda with removal of item J, d. 
Moved by Miriam Zamora, Seconded by Geraldine Barrows 
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS ---  None. 
D. RECOGINITION OF OUTGOING TRUSTEES ---  Gifts and thanks were presented to 
outgoing trustees Christina Eilar and Laura Phillips 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- 
Motion: Approve Minutes: Meeting of November 15, 2022 
Moved by Geraldine Barrows, Seconded by Miriam Zamora  
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 
F. REPORTS  -   
a. Director Branch presented the Financial Reports for review.   
 Motion: Receive and file November 2022 financial reports 
 Moved by Miriam Zamora, Seconded by Geraldine Barrows 
 Vote: Motion 4-0 

Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 
b. Friends of the Library (FOL) – no report 
G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUTS  ---  None 
H. ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS AND APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS FOR 2023 
a. Ron Merson made the following nominations for 2023 Board Officers: 

i. Miriam Zamora, President - Nomination seconded by Geraldine Barrows 
ii. Geraldine Barrows, Vice-President - Nomination seconded by Miriam Zamora 
iii. Lori Beardsley, Clerk - Nomination seconded by Miriam Zamora 

b. Ron Merson made the following Board Committee Appoinments for 2023: 
i. Finance – Ron Merson and Miriam Zamora 
ii. Human Resources – Lori Beardsley and Geraldine Barrows 
iii. Visioning / Strategic Planning – Geraldine Barrows and Ricardo Reyes 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, December 27, 2022 

Draft 1/4/2023    2 

iv. Fundraising – Lori Beardsley and Miriam Zamora 
v. Facilities – Ricardo Reyes and Ron Merson 
vi. Endowment Liaison – Lori Beardsley  

c. Motion: Approve Board Officers and Committee Appointments for 2023 
Moved by Miriam Zamora, Seconded by Geraldine Barrows 
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 

I. OLD BUSINESS---  
a. Library Renovation Update -  

i. Bids for flooring and paint have been received by the project manager.  Ned will 
meet with the project manager to discuss, and will report back to the board with a 
recommendation for approval, if appropriate. 

ii. The electrical contractor is available to start the work as soon as authorized. 
b. Status of digital sign research –  

i. The board reviewed revised designs for the digital monument sign.  Director 
Branch noted that the sign as currently shown would be blocked from view if a 
car parked between the driveways, and suggested possibly placing the sign on the 
stone wall near the building entrance. 

ii. The Board voted to table discussion on the digital sign, as more discussion is 
needed on the location and type, also taking into consideration the proposed 
library addition. 

iii. Motion: Table digital sign discussion 
  Moved by Geraldine Barrows, Seconded by Miriam Zamora 
  Vote: Motion 4-0 

Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 
J. NEW BUSINESS  ---  
a. Mechanical design is needed to determine the new HVAC systems and specifications for the 

Building Forward Grant that was approved.  
Motion: Authorize District Director to sign contract for mechanical engineering services 
Moved by Geraldine Barrows, Seconded by Lori Beardsley 
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 

b. The Library furniture proposal from Tri-County Office Furniture was presented for 
information only.  Director will review the estimate with overall project costs and bring back 
to the board next month for discussion and/or approval. 

c. The Board Meeting Calendar was discussed.  The December meeting date was revised to 
December 19, and the July date was revised to July 25. 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, December 27, 2022 

Draft 1/4/2023    3 

Motion: Approve Board Meeting Calendar as amended 
Moved by Geraldine Barrows, Seconded by Lori Beardsley 
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 

K. REPORTS (continued) 
a. Staff Reports 

i. Public services - Updates were reviewed. 
ii. Facilities Report – covered in Old Business 

iii. District Director’s Report -  
1. Statistics were reviewed. 
2. Update on potential funding for renovations and new building 

a.  The city is currently performing a study on the adequacy of the existing 
rate of development impact fees.  The study is performed every five years.   

b. Limoneira is willing to advance the development impact fees for their 
additional units to the library, which could be credited back as the units 
are constructed.  This, along with fees anticipated for construction 
currently planned in the city, could allow work on the new building to 
proceed sooner than previously thought. 

b.  Board Committees 
i. Finance --- None 

ii. Human Resources --- None 
iii. Strategic Plan Teams –  

1. Visioning/Strategic Plan – None 
2. Fundraising/Grants – None 

J. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS--- The Board agreed to include the following future Agenda 
items: Update on the library renovations, including furniture contract; new building. 
UPCOMING MEETING DATE--- The next regular meeting will be January 24, 2023 at 6:00 
PM. 
ADJOURNMENT---There being no further business, the Regular Meeting was adjourned at 
8:13 pm 
Motion: Approve 
Moved by Miriam Zamora, Seconded by Ron Merson 
Vote: Motion 4-0 
Yes: Geraldine Barrows, Lori Beardsley, Ron Merson, and Miriam Zamora 
 



MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District Board of 
Trustees, Tuesday, December 27, 2022 

Draft 1/4/2023    4 

 
_________________________________________ 
Library Board Clerk 

 
   ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
District Director 



REGULAR MEETING OF January 24, 2023 
E(a). REPORTS: FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

1. Receive and file December 2022 financial reports 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



























REGULAR MEETING OF January 24, 2023 
F. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUTS  
  



REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
G(a) OLD BUSINESS: APPROVAL OF REMODEL FLOORING BID 
 
The Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) in the remodeling budget for flooring was $252,770. The 
low bid received from was $132,000. There may be a slight change in the bid amount because of 
substituting carpet for the tile in the Hardison Room. The cost difference should be minimal and 
will allow installation over the existing tile rather than having to remove it. Other areas of the 
library that were floored with vinyl composition tile had asbestos in the mastic. Carpeting over the 
existing tile will eliminate the potential for a remediation problem. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the District Director to execute a contract with Ardalan 
Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of $132,000 for flooring, modified as needed for 
additional carpet, in a form approved by the library general counsel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



8 East Gainsborough Road      Phone: (805) 496-7273 
Thousand Oaks, CA 91360      Fax:     (805) 496-7310 

General Contracting 
Construction Management

License # 893121 
DIR #1000000782 

Interior Upgrades for Flooring for Blanchard 

Community Library 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 5.2 Cover Letter 2 

Section 5.3 – 5.6 Answers 3 

Section 5.7 Project References 4-5

Exhibit A: Insurance Requirements Acknowledgment 6-7

Bondability Letter 8-11

Exhibit E: List of Subcontractors 12 

Exhibit F: Workers’ Compensation Certificate 13 

Exhibit G: Prevailing Wage Compliance Certification 14 

Exhibit H: Non-Collusion Affidavit 15 

Exhibit I: Bid Schedule 16 



8 East Gainsborough Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 – P. 805-496-7273 – F. 805-496-7310 

General Contracting 
Construction Management

License # 893121 
DIR #1000000782 

Date: 

Attn: 

Re: 

December 16, 2022 

Christina Grina 

Proposal for Interior Upgrades for Flooring for Blanchard Community Library 

Dear Ms. Grina, 

We appreciate the invitation to bid on the above referenced project. Below you will find the 
responses to 5.2. 

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc. (ACC) is located in Ventura County at the address listed 
below. ACC is currently preforming multiple projects in Santa Paula, making this project a nice 
addition if we are awarded the job. 

Attached you will find the bid forms, bid schedule, bonding letter and other pertinent forms. 
ACC Safety Handbook can be provided upon request. It is not attached here since it is over 200 
pages. 

Our proposal is based on the contract documents provided and valid for 60 days from today’s 
date. 

ACC has never had any litigations and as a matter of fact we can claim 100% customer 
satisfaction for any agency or entity we have ever worked for. At this time  

Thank you and please feel free to reach out if you have any questions. 

Sincerely,  
Ardalan Construction Company, Inc. 

Tammy Lee 
Project Manager 



8 East Gainsborough Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 – P. 805-496-7273 – F. 805-496-7310 – License #893121 

5.3 

Ardalan Construction has established a long-standing policy of adopting our clients needs as our 
own.  We have performed approximately around $100 million dollars of work in California 
ranging from a few thousand dollars to over $12 million dollars for a single project. We take 
pride in providing first-class service, safe construction practices and a knowledgeable team to 
take the project from the pre-construction stage to the close-out stage while assuring that all 
information flows clearly among all project stakeholders. 

We are able to provide this project with a Project Manager, Superintendent, along with 
administrative office assistance and labor work force. The key subcontractor that will be utilized 
is Reliable Flooring specializing in flooring coverings. We have a history 

successfully completing projects together through teamwork, reviewing the schedule and 
material leadtimes throughout the duration of the project, communication, and by having pride in 
the quality of work we produce. 

Our worksite safety plan is through and in a binder on every jobsite. We take safety seriously and 
do weekly tailgate meetings to insure all workers understand it’s important for themselves and 
those around them. The site safety plan has not been included as it is over 200 pages and would 
put us well over the 20 page maximum for our proposal, but it can be provided upon request. 

5.4 

See Exhibit E 

5.5 

Mozi Ardalan and Tammy Lee have both made themselves familiar with the project and can be 
reached at 805-496-7273. 

5.6 

Ardalan Construction Company has never had any incidents of regulatory violations and never 
had issues with our contracts in audits. 



Ardalan Construction Company, Inc.
8 E. Gainsborough Road, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360
T. 805-496-7273   -    F. 805-496-7311
CSLB License #: 893121
Bids@ArdalanCC.com

Project Name, Owner, Architect & Location Project Description & Lic.  Original Contract  Final Contract  Contact & Tel. Start
Actual 

Completion

Sierra High School Shade Structure  Site work and coordination with 
615 Shiells Dr, Fillmore, CA 93015 Shade Structure Installer 201,400$     Kevin Schmitz Dec-22
Fillmore Unified School District Kevin.schmitz@fillmoreusd.org est.
627 Sespe Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 805-524-8048
Architect: SVA Architects
Gerald Michaels 657-259-8862

Hueneme HS Portable Foundation & Site Alternations Moving (3) portables reworking the 
500 W Bard Rd, Oxnard, CA 93033 foundation and moving them back. 739,800$     CM Bernards Oct-22 Jan-23
Oxnard Union High School District Rob Perks est
1800 Solar Dr, Oxnard, CA 93030 rperks@bernards.com
Architect: DC Architects 805.598.2271
909-985-6939

Santa Paula High School 600 Wing

404 N 6th St, Santa Paula, CA 93060 Structural alterations, interior 4,800,000$     Douglas Henning Jun-22 Jul-23
Santa Paula Unified School District improvements, and site work dhenning@santapaulausd.org est
201 S. Steckel Drive, Santa Paula, CA 93060 Ph.805-861-8353
Architect: Flewelling & Moody
fm-pasadena@flewelling-moody.com
Hollow Hills ES Portable Relocation Malihe Shokouhi
828 Gibson Ave, Simi Valley, CA 93065 Relocation of (5) portable buildings 456,185$     (213) 718-0462 Jun-22 Aug-22
Simi Valley Unified School District malihe.shokouhi@simivalleyusd.org est
101 W Cochran Street, Simi Valley, CA 93065
Moorpark ECC Playground Restoration Denise Berrington
240 Flory Ave, Moorpark, CA 93021 Playground Restoration 122,968$     156,201$     805-378-6300 x1431 May-22 Jul-22
Moorpark Unified School District dberrington@mrpk.org

5297 Maureen Lane, Moorpark, CA 93021
Red Oak ES Exterior Improvements

4857 Rockfield Street, Oak Park, CA 91377
Improvements to the exterior of the

Oak Park Unified School District buildings including plywood, 2,194,000$     2,252,037$     Rafael Alamillo May-22 Aug-22
5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377 waterproofing, stucco, paint, roofing, ralamillo@balfourbeattyus.com

CM: Balfour Beatty, Rafael Alamillo sheet metal, ect. and ADA compliant (805)208-7462

ralamillo@balfourbeattyus.com parking lot.
BCA Architects

Michael Henning, michaelh@studiow-architects.com
Mound ES Fire Reconstruction 

455 S Hill Rd, Ventura, CA 93003 Reconstruction and repair of (3) 1,357,000$     Terri Allison
Venutra Unified School District classrooms Ph.805-651-9614 May-22 Dec-22
255 W Stanley Ave, Ventura, CA 93001 terri.allison@venturausd.org est
RNT Architects
Catherine Young, young@rntarchitects.com
Sumac Park Restroom Rehabilitation Restroom Improvements and ADA  $    279,080  $    417,595 Charmaine Yambao, PE
6000 Calmfield Ave, Agoura Hills, CA 91301 Site Work 818-597-7360 Jul-21 Feb-22
City of Agoura Hills CYambao@agourahillscity.org

30001 Ladyface Court, Agoura Hills, CA 91301
CM: Willdan Engineering
Mike Bustos, mbustos@willdan.com
Garden City Acres Park Improvement Project Park Improvements including a new  $    479,379  $    491,581 Lisa Shirley
5302 Cypress Rd, Oxnard, CA 93033 basketball court Ph. 805-200-5293 Jul-21 Dec-21
City of Oxnard lisa.shirley@oxnard.org

305 West Third Street, East Wing, Third Floor, Oxnard, California  93030

Simi Valley Fire Station #44 Communication Tower Trash Enclosure

1050 Country Club Dr., Simi Valley, CA 93065 Installation of a new Communications 134,000$     146,186$     David Kirby
Ventura County Fire Protection District Tower and Trash Enclosure david.kirby@ventura.org Jul-21 Sep-21
165 Durley Ave., Camarillo, CA 93010 (805) 910-0256
IDEAS - Arthur Anderson
1082 So. Seaward Avenue, Ventura, CA 93001
(805) 653-5800
ideasarc@sbcglobal.net 

Hollow Hills Elementary School Irrigation Improvements

828 Gibson Ave, Simi Valley, CA 93065 Landscape and Irrigation 169,700$     161,060$      Robin Rickman
Simi Valley Unified School District (SVUSD) Improvements (805) 306-4500 X4477 Feb-21 Jun-21
101 W. Cochran St, Simi Valley, CA 93065 robin.rickman@simivalleyusd.org
Jordan, Gilbert & Bain, Landscape Architects
(805) 642-3641
john@jordan-gilbert.com
Post & Cable Fire Damage Replacement Douglas Duran
Oak Park, CA Replace posts and cable that were 229,000$     251,890$     805-584-4480 Apr-21 Jun-21
Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District damaged in the Woolsey Fire douglas@rsrpd.us

4201 Guardian St, Simi Valley, CA 93063
New HVAC Modernization For Oxnard High School

3400 W Gonzales Rd, Oxnard, CA 93036 HVAC Modernization 10,980,000$     Project Management: Bernards Jan-21 Oct-22
Oxnard Union High School District Ace Contreras est
309 S. K Street, Oxnard, CA 93036 559-212-9914
WLC Architect acontreras@bernards.com

Slade Johnson, slade@wlcarchitects.com
909-987-0909

1 of 2

5.7



Rio Mesa HS Stadium Bleachers Mr. Poul Hanson
545 Central Ave, Oxnard, CA 93036 1,948,000$     2,364,116$     (805) 383-1943 Feb-21 Aug-21
Oxnard Union High School District poul.hanson@oxnardunion.org

309 S. K Street, Oxnard, CA 93036
Little Diversified Archtectural Consulting, 949.698.1400
1300 Dove Street, Suite 100 Newport Beach, CA. 92660
Forest Cove Park Rehabilitation and Maintenance Project Charmaine Yambao
5451 Forest Cove Lane, Agoura Hills Ca 91301 218,200$     287,257$     818-597-7360 Sep-20 Dec-20
City of Agoura Hills CYambao@agourahillscity.org

30001 Ladyface Court, Agoura Hills, CA 91301
NEW STEM Building - Grading & Earthwork Mr. Tim McCabe
100 Lakeview Canyon Rd., Thousand Oaks, CA 91362 189,900$     208,745$     (805) 497-9511 x 484 Aug-20 Sep-20
Conejo Valley Unified School District tmccabe@conejousd.org

Perkins-Easman Dougherty
3194 D Airport Loop Drive, Costa Mesa, CA 92626
Madera Elementary School Classroom Renovation Malihe Shokouhi
Simi Valley Unified School District (SVUSD) 298,000$     296,075$     malihe.shokouhi@simivalleyusd.org Jul-20 Nov-20
101 W. Cochran St, Simi Valley, CA 93065 213-718-0462
Hillside Middle School Classroom Renovation Jim McGregor
ralvarado@19six.com jim.mcgregor@simivalleyusd.org
4000 Sunset Lane, Oxnard, CA 93035 805.306.4500 ext. 4472
Thousand Oaks Community Center Pre-School Restroom Improvements Andrew Mooney
Conejo Recreation and Parks District 129,400$     133,735$     amooney@crpd.org Apr-20 Jun-20
403 W. Hillcrest Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91360 805-495-6471
GKA Architects: Gregory Ian Korn
(310) 680-9090, gkorn@gka-arc.com
2525 Moorpark Rd., Thousand Oaks, CA 91362
Fillmore Middle School Ballfield Upgrade Project Ms. Andrea McNeill
Fillmore Unified School District 1,598,000$     1,613,968$     (805) 524-8047 Mar-20 Aug-20
627 Sespe Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 amcneill@fillmoreusd.org
SIM-PBK Architects Gama Aguilar
7790 N. Palm Avenue, Fresno, CA 93711 (805) 524-8047
P: 805-947-3200   C: 909-240-2535 gaguilar@fillmoreusd.org
Oxnard High School - Swimming Pool Repair & Deck Resurfacing Mr. Poul Hanson
Oxnard Union High School District 1,270,000$     1,441,175$     (805) 383-1943 Nov-19 Apr-20
309 S. K Street, Oxnard, CA 93036
Jones & Madhavan Architecture Engineering
100 East Thousand Oaks Blvd., Suite 211
Thousand Oaks, CA 91360
Ph. (805) 777-8449
County of Ventura - Ojai Fire Station #20 Mr. Jon Jacobson
County of Ventura 7,378,000$     7,596,828$     (805) 654-2022 Oct-19 Jul-21
1000 Santa Paula - Ojai Road (HWY 150), Ojai, CA 93023
KBZ Architects, Inc.
199 Figueroa St. Suite 100A, Ventura, CA 93001
Ph. (805) 650-1033

Band Room Conversion at Valley View MS Mr. Marc Cunningham
Simi Valley Unified School District 1,260,000$     1,291,375$     (805) 570-6321 Sep-19 Apr-20
101 W. Cochran Street, Simi Valley, CA 93065 marc.cunningham@simivalleyusd.org
Rachlin Partners
8640 National Blvd., Culver City, CA 90232
Ph. (310) 204-3400
Strathern Historical Park & Museum - Printz/Power Colony House Mr. Douglas Duran
Rancho Simi Recreation & Park District 636,500$     502,325$     (805) 584-4480 Sep-19 Mar-20
137 Strathern Place, Simi Valley, CA 92660
Thirtieth Street Architects, Inc.
2821 Newport Blvd., Newport Beach, CA 92663
Ph. (949) 673-2643

Removal and replacement of the pool 
concrete deck and pool plaster

Improvements to a Baseball Field, 
Parking Lot, Ramp, and Restrooms

Renovating an Exisiting Stoarage Area 
into a Restroom

Constructing a pad for a Relocatable 
Classroom Renovations

Classroom Renovations

Grading and Earthwork for a New 
STEM Building

Rehabilitation of parking lot and play 
area

Removal and Installation of New 
Bleachers

Construction of a new Fire Station

Reconstruction of the Printz/Power 
Colony Historic House

Remodel/TI of the existing Band Room

2 of 2



1 

EXHIBIT A 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS [MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH BID] 

To be awarded this contract, the successful bidder must procure and maintain the following 

types of insurance with coverage limits complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth 

below: 

Type of Insurance Limits 

Commercial general liability:  $2,000,000 

Business automobile liability: $2,000,000 

Workers’ compensation Statutory requirement 

Commercial general liability insurance must meet or exceed the requirements of ISO-CGL Form 

No. CG 00 01 11 85 or 88.  The amount of insurance set forth above must be a combined single 

limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage for the policy 

coverage.  Liability policies must be endorsed to name as “additional insured” the Blanchard 

Community Library, its elected officials, officials, agents and employees under said insurance 

coverage and to state that such insurance shall be deemed “primary” such that any other 

insurance that may be carried by the Blanchard Community Library shall be excess thereto.  

Such endorsement must be reflected on ISO Form No. CG 20 10 11 85 or 88, or equivalent.  

Such insurance must be on an “occurrence,” not a “claims made,” basis and shall not be 

cancelable or subject to reduction except upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 

Blanchard Community Library.  

 Automobile coverage must be written on ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 00 01 06 92, 

including symbol 1 (Any Auto).    

The Contractor must furnish to the Blanchard Community Library duly authenticated 

Certificates of Insurance evidencing maintenance of the insurance required under this 

Agreement, endorsements as required herein, and such other evidence of insurance or copies 

of policies as may be reasonably required by the Blanchard Community Library from time to 

time.  Insurance must be placed with admitted insurers with a current A.M. Best Company 

Rating equivalent to at least a Rating of “A:VII.”  Certificate(s) must reflect that the insurer shall 

provide thirty (30) day notice of any cancellation of coverage.  The Contractor shall require its 

insurer to modify such certificates to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the 

insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word 

“endeavor” with regard to any notice provisions.  

Exhibit A 



2 
 

By signing this form, the bidder certifies that it has read, understands, and shall comply with 

these insurance requirements if it is selected as the Blanchard Community Library’s bidder.  

Failure to return this form may render the bidder’s bid as nonresponsive. 

 

 

____________________     _________________________ 

Date        Signature 

 

        __________________________ 

        Name of the Insurance Company 

 

12/17/22

AP Tutton Insurance Services



IMPORTANT:  THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM 
 
Surety companies executing bonds must possess a certificate of authority from the California 
Insurance Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance defined in California Insurance 
Code section 105, and if the work or project is financed, in whole or in part with federal grant or 
loan funds, Surety’s name must also appear on the Treasury Department’s most current list 
(Circular 570 as amended). 
 
Any claims under this bond may be addressed to: 
 
(Name and Address of Surety)  (Name and Address of agent or representative 
      for service of process in California) 
 
      (Telephone) 
 
 
NOTE:  A copy of the power-of-attorney to local representatives of the bonding company must be 
attached hereto. 
 

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company

790 The City Drive South, Suite 200, Orange, CA 92868 Kevin Reed kevin@reedsurety.com

714-634-5726









INFORMATION REQUIRED OF BIDDER 

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

As required under Section 4100, et seq., of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and 
business address of each subcontractor who will perform Work under this Bid in excess of one-half of one percent 
of the Contractor's Total Bid Price and shall also list the portion of the Work which will be done by such 
subcontractor.  After the opening of Bids, no changes or substitutions will be allowed except as otherwise provided 
by law.  The listing of more than one subcontractor for each item of Work to be performed with the words 
"and/or" will not be permitted.  Failure to comply with this requirement will render the Bid as non-responsive and 
may cause its rejection. Attach additional sheets if required. 

Work to be Performed 
Subcontractor’s 
License 
Number/Exp. 

Percent 
of Total 
Contract 

Subcontractor’s Name & Address 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS AS REQUIRED 

Exhibit E 

60%LVT and Carpet 

839258 
5/31/24 Reliable Floor Covering Inc.

Westlake Village, CA



WORKERS’ COMPENSATION REQUIREMENT - The Bidder should be aware that in accordance 

with laws of the State of California, the Bidder will, if awarded the Contract, be required to 

secure the payment of compensation to its employees and execute the Workers’ Compensation 

Certification. 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE 

(AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 1861 OF THE CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE) 

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code, which requires every 

employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation, or to undertake self-

insurance in accordance with the provisions of said Code, and I will comply with such provisions 

before commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract. 

Contractor: ______________________________________________ 

By: ______________________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________________________ 

Exhibit F 

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc.

Mozafar Ardalan

President



PREVAILING WAGE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 

To: 
Blanchard Community Library 
119 North Eighth Street 
Santa Paula, CA 93060 

PROJECT No.:  ______________________________________ 

TYPE OF PROJECT:  __________________________________ 
BID PACKAGE No.   __________________________________ 

I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract 
Requirements regarding wages, benefits, on site audits, payroll records, and 
apprentice and trainee employment requirements. 

Date: 

Bidder 

By 

Title 

Organization 

Address 

Exhibit G 

Interior Upgrades for Flooring  

12/17/22

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc.

Mozafar Ardalan

President

Corporation

8 E. Gainsborough Rd.

Thousand Oaks, CA 91360



NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER 
AND SUBMITTED WITH BID 

State of California ) 
) ss. 

County of ) 

I, ________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he or she 
is            of ____________________, the party making the 
foregoing Bid, that the Bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, 
partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the Bid is genuine and not 
collusive or sham; that the Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other 
Bidder to put in a false or sham Bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, 
connived, or agreed with any Bidder or anyone else to put in a sham Bid, or that anyone shall 
refrain from bidding; that the Bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by 
agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the Bid price of the Bidder or any 
other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the Bid price, or of that of any 
other Bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the Contract of 
anyone interested in the proposed Contract; that all statements contained in the Bid are true; 
and, further, that the Bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her Bid price, or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or 
paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, 
organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or 
sham Bid. 

Bidder 

By 

Title 

Organization 

Address 

Exhibit  H 

Ventura

Mozafar Ardalan
President Ardalan Construction Company, Inc.

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc

Mozafar Ardalan

President

Corporation

8 E. Gainsborough Rd.

Thousand Oaks, CA 91360



“EXHIBIT I” 

BID SCHEDULE 

Interior Upgrades for Flooring for 
Blanchard Community Library 

Contractor Name: __________________________________     Lic. #_______________________ 

A. The undersigned proposes to furnish all Labor, Equipment and Materials required to complete the
Improvements per the contract and price specified below.

B. This bid includes addenda number(s) (IF REQUIRED) _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

All Quantities are computed on an "Approx. Measured in Place Basis". Bidders shall compute their
own measurements and waste factors into their bids.

C. No. Description Total Price 

1. General Conditions  ______________ 

2. Removal of Existing Flooring
SOW items 1.01-1.03  ______________ 

3. Patch, Repair and Prepare Existing Floors
SOW items 2.01-2.04  ______________ 

4. Provide and Install New Porcelain Tile
SOW item 3.01  ______________ 

5. Provide and Install New Vinyl Tile
SOW item 3.02  ______________ 

6. Provide and Install New Carpet Tile
SOW items 3.03  ______________ 

7. Provide and Install New Base
SOW items 3.04  ______________ 

8. Provide and Install New Transition Strips
SOW item 4.01  ______________ 

The Sum of the Total Bid = Proposed contract price:   $____________________ 

 Submitted By: 

 Name: ___________________________________________  

 Signed By: ___________________________________________ 

 Date:  ___________________________________________ 
Page 1 of 1 

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc. 893121

n/a

Ardalan Construction Company, Inc.

Mozafar Ardalan

12/17/22

$15,000.00

$9,500.00

(allowance) $2,500.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

$75,000.00

$5,000.00

$3,000.00

132,000.00



REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
H(a) NEW BUSINESS: APPROVAL OF DRAFT OF 2021-22 AUDIT 
 
The draft of the audit report for fiscal year 2021-22 prepared by the library’s auditors—Moss, 
Levy, Hartzheim—is attached. There were no findings. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board accept the completed audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       











































































REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
H(b) NEW BUSINESS: APPROVAL OF AUTHORIZED BANK ACCOUNT SIGNATORIES 
 
The library trustees are the only signers on the library bank accounts. With the change in the 
membership of the Board, new signature cards are needed for the six checking accounts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the following signers for the accounts at Bank of America: 
 
 

Genevieve Barrows 
Lori Beth Beardsley 
Ron Merson 
Ricardo Reyes 
Miriam Zamora 

   



REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
H(c) NEW BUSINESS: APPROVE COST ESTIMATE FOR WORKING DRAWINGS FOR 
NEW BUILDING 
 
The library has commitments of $1.5 million for the new Community Hall proposed for the 
northwest corner of the property. Staff believes that a full set of construction documents will 
enable us to get a more exact cost estimate for construction, which will facilitate getting 
commitments for the remaining funds needed. The estimate of the cost for the drawings is  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the Board approve an agreement in the amount of $183,332 for professional 
services to be performed by Anderson, Kulwiec, Appleby Architects to produce complete 
construction drawings. 
 
 
  
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       



ANDERSON KULWIEC 
APPLEBY 
ARCHITECTS 

854 East Main Street, Suite 100
Santa Paula California   93060-2734

T 805-933-0225   F 805-933-6609
www.KulwiecGroup.com

01-18-2023 - Proposal - Blanchard Library - Community Hall - updated.docx

January 18, 2023 

Ned Branch 
Director, Blanchard Community Library 
119 N. 8th Street 
Santa Paula, CA 93060 

PROJECT: Blanchard Community Library – New Community Hall 
Project No. 2023-102  Project No. 2019-101.2  

Dear Ned, 

Thank you for contacting Anderson Kulwiec Appleby Architects (AKA) to provide architectural 
services for your project. 

New Community Hall - Project Description: 
Construct new 3,000 SF Community Hall including community room, kitchenette, lobby, toilet rooms, 
and site improvements. 

This is to amend our letter of agreement dated January 24, 2019, and updates the Letter of Agreement  
dated 03-23-2022. The work below is on the based the Schematic Design Plans dated 01-23-2020.  

SCOPE OF WORK 

PHASE 3 – Topographic Survey 

Phase 3 will be performed for a fixed fee in accordance with our standard “Terms and 
Conditions” (Attachment ‘A’, which forms a part of this Agreement). 

PHASE 4 – Design Development  

1. Architectural Plans & Details
2. Gather and present color and materials samples
3. Civil Engineering
4. Structural Engineering
5. Mechanical / Plumbing Engineering
6. Electrical Engineering



  
Blanchard Library – New Community Hall                                                   Page 2 

 

01-18-2023 - Proposal - Blanchard Library - Community Hall - updated.docx 

7. Landscape Architecture 
8. Fire Protection Engineering 
9. Owner / Library Design Committee review meetings 

Phase 4 services will be performed for a fixed fee. 
 
PHASE 5 – Construction Documents – thru availability of building permit  
1. Architectural Plans & Details 
2. Civil Engineering 
3. Structural Engineering 
4. Mechanical / Plumbing Engineering 
5. Electrical Engineering 
6. Landscape Architecture 
7. Fire Protection Engineering 
8. Title 24 Energy Calculations 
9. Prepare finishes and furnishing plans  

10. Prepare interior elevations 
11. Coordinate work with Furnishings Consultant 
12. Owner / Library Design Committee review meetings 
13. Building Permit Processing 
 

Phase 5 services will be performed for a fixed fee. 
 
 
PHASE 6 – Bidding Support – New Community Hall, as needed:  
1. Assist in preparing the Bid Package, as needed by Owner 
2. Provide clarifications and prepare addenda, as required 
3. Assist the Owner in evaluation of Bids and selection of the Contractor   
 

Phase 6 services will be performed on a time-and-materials basis.  If the anticipated time exceeds 
the budget, the Owner will be notified.    

 
 
PHASE 7 - Construction Administration Services, L imi ted ,  as required:  
1. Review o f  Submittals and Shop Drawings 
2. Construction Site Meetings, as requested 
3. Site Observation 
4. Clarification of design issues, as needed 
 

Phase 7 services will be performed on time-and-materials basis. 



  
Blanchard Library – New Community Hall                                                   Page 3 

 

01-18-2023 - Proposal - Blanchard Library - Community Hall - updated.docx 

FEE SCHEDULE – NEW COMMUNITY HALL 
 
PHASE  FEE

Phase 3 Topographic Survey  $3,360
Phase 4 Design Development $51,336
Phase 5 Construction Documents $90,880
Phase 6 Bidding Support (estimated) $8,476
Phase 7 Limited Construction Administration 

(estimated) 
$29,280

  
Total   $183,332

 
 

The following work or services, which may be required to complete the project, are not included in the 
above Scope of Work, and should be budgeted separately: 

1. Document Reproduction 
2. Agency Fees 
3. Soils Investigation 
4. Library Consultant 
5. Hazardous Materials Testing /Abatement 
6. Renderings 
7. Environmental Design or Reports 
8. Security System Design 
9. Fire Alarm System Design 

10. Telecommunication Design 
11. Audio/Visual System Design 
12. Furnishing Final Design and Procurement 

Please return one signed copy of this letter to our office as our official Authorization to Proceed. 

We are ready to start work immediately upon receipt of your authorization, and look forward to working 
with you on this project. 

If you have any questions, please contact me or Dave Anderson. 

NOTE: For the Purpose of expedition, both parties agree that a facsimile of this agreement shall be 
used (binding) in lieu of wet signed originals. 



  
Blanchard Library – New Community Hall                                                   Page 4 

 

01-18-2023 - Proposal - Blanchard Library - Community Hall - updated.docx 

 
Very truly yours, AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED: 

 
Marilyn Appleby, AIA, Architect _______________________________ 
Principal Architect    C-30868 Signature 
 
 
Tax I.D. #54-2124488 _______________________________ 
Enclosure: Attachment ‘A’ Title Date 



AKA 
ANDERSON KULWIEC APPLEBY 
ARCHITECTS 

854 East Main Street, Suite 100
Santa Paula California   93060-2734

T 805-933-0225   F 805-933-6609
www.KulwiecGroup.com

 

01-18-2023 - Proposal - Blanchard Library - Community Hall - updated.docx 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The Firm shall perform the services outlined in this agreement for the stated fee arrangement. 

Access To Site: 
Unless otherwise stated, the Firm will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the services. The Firm will take 
precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but have not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage. 

Dispute Resolution: 
Any claims or disputes made during design, construction or post-construction between the Client and Firm shall be submitted to non-
binding mediation. Client and Firm agree to include a similar mediation agreement with all contractors, sub-contractors, sub-consultants, 
suppliers and fabricators, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between all parties. 

Billings/Payments: 
Invoices for the Firm’s services shall be submitted, at the Firm’s option, either upon completion of such services or on a monthly basis. 
Invoices shall be payable within 30 days after the invoice date. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, the Firm may, without waiving any 
claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the performance of the service. Retainers shall be 
credited on the final invoice. 

Late Payments: 
Accounts unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the legal rate) on the then unpaid 
balance. In the event any portion or all of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees. 

Indemnification: 
The Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Firm, his or her officers, directors, employees, 
agents and sub-consultants from and against all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising 
out of or in any way connected with the performance by any of the parties above named of the services under this agreement, excepting 
only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Firm. 

Certifications, Guarantees and Warranties: 
The Firm shall not be required to execute any document that would result in their certifying, guaranteeing or warranting the existence of 
conditions whose existence the Firm cannot ascertain. 

Limitation of Liability: 
In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Firm, the risks have been allocated such 
that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Firm’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, 
losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed $25,000. Such causes 
include, but are not limited to, the Firm’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty. 

Termination of Services: 
This Agreement may be terminated by the Client or the Firm should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of 
termination, the Client shall pay the Firm for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable 
termination expenses. 

Ownership of Documents: 
All documents produced by the Firm under this agreement shall remain the property of the Firm and may not be used by the Client for any 
other endeavor without the written consent of the Firm. 

Standard Hourly Rates: 
For professional services performed on an hourly basis by in-house staff, the following rates are effective January 1, 2023. Current hourly 
rates are subject to a five percent (5%) increase effective January 1st of each year. 

Outside Consultants: 

Services of outside Consultants (i.e., structural, mechanical, electrical engineering services, etc.), shall be billed to the Client at a multiple 
of one point two (1.2) times the amount billed to the Firm for such services. 

Reimbursable Expenses: 
Reimbursable expenses (document reproduction, fees advanced, etc.), shall be billed to the Client at a multiple of one point one five (1.15) 
times the amount expended by the Firm, the Firm’s employees, and outside Consultants in the interest of the Project. 

Technician  $60.00 Project Manager $125.00 
Clerical $60.00 Associate $150.00 
Drafter   $80.00 Principal $170.00 
  





 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
I(a)(i) REPORTS: PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
 
 
  



DECEMBER 2022 ADULT SERVICES REPORT 

Programs & Services 

 

Computer Classes for Seniors 

The final class of our introductory session took place at the beginning of this month. Classes will be on break for 
the holidays. The intermediate level of classes will begin on Monday, January 9th and will run through Thursday, 
March 2nd.  

 
  

Collection 

75 adult-oriented items were added to the collection in December 2022.   

  

5 of the items with the most checkouts for the past 90 days 

 



 
Youth Services Report 

December 2022 
December Crafts:  232 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Bulletin Board 
Christmas/Winter  

 
 
 
 

Book Displays 
Christmas, Train and Cozy Vibes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

1. Family Programs-  
                      

Wednesday, October 12 Family Movie  17 
   Muppets Christmas  3 adults  14 Children 
    Carol 

2. Ongoing Programs –  
a. Story time        130 

  
Tuesday 12/6, 12/13   9 adults  16 children 
(Bilingual) 12/20, 12/27 
 
Wednesday 12/7, 12/14   34 adults 71 children 
(Preschool)  12/21, 12/28     
   

 
b. LEGO        127 

12/5, 12/7, 12/12, 12/14 41 adults 86 children 
12/19, 12/21, 12/28 

 
c. Reading with PAWS     17 

   12/3, 12/17    7 adults 10 children 
 

3. Class Visits 
Students received a tour of the library, flyers and information about upcoming events and storytime. 

11/18 Mckevett 2nd Grade 50 students  10 parents 

12/16 Grace Thille TK     23 students  8 parents  
   

 
Circulation-JUV/YA Juvenile Fiction Juvenile Non-Fiction Total 
January 1000 252 1252 
February 963 271 1234 
March 1,483 376 1859 
April 25-30 306 100 406* 
May 1,091 463 1,554 
June 2,725 527 3,252 
July 2,035 371 2,406 
August 1,554 401 1,955 
September 1,299 339 1,698 
October 1,597 387 1,978 
November 1,584 365 1,949 
December 1,039 233 1,272 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
New Patron 
Registrations 

Adult Juvenile E-card Total 

January 46 8  54 
February 48 18  66 
March 45 24  69 
April  1-21 37 10  47 
May 44 37  81 
June 73 72  145 
July 47 37  84 
August 46 14 10 70 
September 38 21 18 77 
October 49 29 18 96 
November 61 26 8 95 
December 24 8 17 49 
 
 
Circulation 
Adult 
Fic 

Adult 
NF 

Large 
Print 

Spanish 
Fiction 

Spanish 
Non-Fic 

BKCD DVD/ 
BLURAY 

MusicCD  

272 164 26 5 8 11 159 0  
Magazines Hotspots Kindles & 

Laptop 
Kiosk 

Connectivi
ty Kits 

Library of 
Things 

YA Fic YA Non-
Fic 

YA Fic 
Spanish 
 

YA NF 
Spanish 

27 23 3 11 1 73 4 0 0 
J BKCD J DVD/ 

BLURAY 
J 
Music CD 

Juv  Fic Juv NF Juv Fic 
Spanish 

Juv NF 
Spanish 

J 
Magazine 

Total 

8 77 0 883 215 83 14 0 2067 
 

Discards Adult Fic Adult Non-
Fic 

DVD YA Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic Total 

January 357 40 0 0 0 0 397 
February 0 424 0 0 0 0 424 
March 0 546 0 0 0 0 546 
April 0 59 0 0 0 0 59 
May 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 
June 2 0 0 0 2 0 4 
July 1 1 0 0 1 0 3 
August 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 
September 1 0 0 0 2 0 3 
October 2 1 0 0 1 0 4 
November 0 13 0 20 6 2 41 
December 0 60 0 0 36 40 136 
 

New Books Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic YA Fic Ya Non-Fic J DVD J BKCD Total 
July 73 26 75 52 4 0 226 
August 35 17 7 1 2 0 62 
September 77 12 1 0 0 0 90 
October 104 21 1 1 2 0 129 
November 41 22 11 1 6 0 81 
December 58 32 5 2 2 0 99 







REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
I(a)(ii) REPORTS: FACILITIES 
  



REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 24, 2023 
I(a)(iii) REPORTS: DISTRICT DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 

1. Statistics 
2. Staff Changes:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 










